[Negative reply received from Justice Minister. Inquest verdicts and results and coroners’ recommendations to remain effectively secret.]
                                                                                           15 November 2010 
Dear David Ford,  
I refer to the reply of 13 August 2010 that I received to my letter of 20 July concerning publication of the results of coroners' inquests on the coroners' service website (CSNI). The reasons given for not agreeing to my request were I felt out-of-date and called much of the purpose of inquests into question, especially as coroners' recommendations might often never be publicised. 
The comparison with England although informative is hardly relevant now that justice is a devolved matter. 
In light of your reply, I decided to test the matter by way of a freedom of information request asking for details of inquest findings in Belfast for a specimen two month period. The response is at the end of this email (the cover letter is attached) and gave details of the relevant inquest results. These I believe, anonymised if thought necessary, could be usefully made accessible on the CSNI website, in particular for doctors, lawyers and other experts, as well as properly interested persons. 
Sensitivity concerns should preclude the holding of an inquest at all, not be a reason for hiding the findings. In the case of FoI, sensitivity is plainly not a barrier to the provision of details. I therefore ask if you might review your decision and make plans to add the details of findings etc., to the CSNI website. 
As I mentioned before, most of the publications on the CSNI website still bring up error messages when trying to access them which doesn't provide much confidence. Perhaps you could also draw that to the service's attention. 
Yours sincerely 
Jeff Dudgeon.

Department of Justice

Castle Buildings

Belfast

13 August 2010

Dear Mr Dudgeon,

Thank you for your letter of 20 July, The Minister of Justice has noted your comments and asked me to reply.

You have seen the Minister’s response to AQW6591/10 in which he advised that there are currently no plans to publish the findings of inquests on the Coroners Service website because of the personal and sensitive nature of the information involved and the possibility of causing more distress to the next of kin The position has not altered since the earlier response. In England and Wales the coroners reports and recommendations which are published under statutory authority are anonymised so as not identify the deceased.

At the same time it is not intended to create or promote a culture of secrecy. An inquest is open to the public and any ‘properly interested person’ can apply to the coroner for access to the documents put in evidence. We think this achieves a balance between the openness of the proceedings’ and the rights of those with a direct interest in the proceedings while remaining sensitive to the undesirability of publishing very personal information to the world at large.

The Minister has also noted your concerns about inquests not being held into the possible suicides of gay men following police investigations into sexual activity in public places. Any decision to hold (or not) an inquest is a matter for the coroner in the exercise of his or her judicial discretion in the particular circumstances of each case and not a matter on which the Minister can comment.

The Minister has asked me to thank you for setting out your views on these issues. I hope the above observations are of assistance in explaining our own thinking.

Yours sincerely,
Mairaid McMahon (Private Secretary)

David Ford MLA

Minister of Justice

Northern Ireland Assembly

Stormont

Belfast

jeffreydudgeon@hotmail.com

20 July 2010

Dear Minister,

I note your answer to an Assembly question of 18 June 2010 on the Coroners Service for Northern Ireland (CSNI) and its website, where you say that “there are no plans at present to publish the findings of Inquests because of the personal and sensitive nature of the information involved and the possibility of causing more distress to the next of kin.” 

That I have to say is an argument for not holding inquests at all, and certainly not in public.
I have longstanding concerns about this policy and would ask you to change it in light of the present era of freedom of information, societal changes as to what constitutes a family or “next of kin” and the public interest.

The CSNI website opens by stating, “A Coroner’s duty is to investigate deaths which are reported to the Coroner and which appear to have happened in sudden or unexplained circumstances.” Almost by definition, it is saying that a coroner’s job is to act for the public in examining mysterious or concerning deaths. One would therefore presume that it would be part of its function to ensure that details of inquests held, at the very least, and the verdicts are made known and accessible.

(By the way, many if not most of the links for publications on the CSNI website currently time-out or bring up error reports.)

It is not as if inquests are not open to the press and are, in a certain number of cases, reported at length, and in detail, in the media. 

They perform a function which, at its core, is about openness and enquiry in the public interest. For that reason alone there can surely be no argument against the CSNI website providing at least the most minimal details of the date of an inquest (in advance and afterwards), the name of the deceased, the date of death, the inquest finding and any recommendations made by the coroner. 

None of those details are of a personal and sensitive nature or should cause more distress to the next of kin. Indeed some families, unknown to the authorities, may want publicity despite their distress. All the details are ascertainable by a journalist attending an inquest.

The issue of other and greater evidential detail is a more complex one and I recognise that exhibits of a photographic nature or post-mortem reports may well be distressing. They should certainly be governed by different rules. I am however not concerned about this aspect except in relation to historic records.

I was pleased to read that you did say, “However where a coroner believes that action should be taken to prevent the recurrence of fatalities similar to the one for which an inquest was held, he may make a report to the person or authority that has power to take action. While there is currently no provision for the publication of this information in Northern Ireland this is something that I intend to review.” 

There may be no current provision or arrangement, however the matter could be readily rectified if such information was posted on the CSNI website, as would undoubtedly happen in the case of any other public body. For such recommendations (not noted in the press) to remain unknown defeats much of their purpose. 

Presumably publication of minimal inquest details on the CSNI website does not require any new power, rather an instruction or request so to do. As you will know, court lists are published in advance on the court service website.
I and the Northern Ireland Gay Rights Association have been involved with coroners’ inquests for many years and have found it amazingly difficult to get access and information, in particular, in relation to the murders of gay men and of suicides particularly following police investigations for sexual activity in public places. 

We have discovered that many such suicides do not result in inquests being held and that the decision not to hold an inquest is often taken by the coroner, and or the family involved, supposedly to spare the relatives’ feelings. 

This of course militates against the public interest and any other non-family interests, but it is near impossible to break out of this traditional view that presumed family feelings are the deciding factor. That presupposes one even knows whether or when a particular inquest is to happen.
I instance the case of a boy and a man who killed themselves in Lisburn two years ago after police operations at the Giants Ring. It was only through a misstatement at a police liaison meeting that the suicides were first revealed. We gather no inquests took place so we were not able to ascertain the circumstances of the deaths and whether a different police approach could have prevented them.  

Historic inquest records are withheld by PRONI for a hundred years on the very same grounds you quote. I have managed after something of a struggle to get, at least, the index of names of those subject to coroners’ inquests up to 1909 published on their website. The question of later names being made available is under review.

This well-meaning departmental policy creates or reinforces a culture of secrecy and takes no account of the nature of differing types of family, present equality aspects or the legitimate public interest. I do therefore hope you can see your way to effecting this small change in relation to the CSNI website. 

Yours sincerely

Jeffrey Dudgeon.
[If an inquest is held, open to the public and press, publishing the findings can hardly add more than a fragment of distress to the families and they may welcome it.

PRONI has a pre-1910 inquests index and is adding another 10 years. It is the coroners’ decision not to allow anything earlier to be indexed and catalogued and made publicly available.]

Website of the Coroners Service for Northern Ireland

Mr J Craig asked the Minister of Justice if he has any plans to publish on the website of the Coroners Service for Northern Ireland, the basic details of completed inquests, such as the name of the deceased, date of death and inquest, the verdict of the inquest and any related recommendations by the jury or coroner.

(AQW 7528/10)

Minister of Justice: As I explained in my answer to AQW 6591/10 and published in the Official Report on 14 May 2010, there are no plans to publish the findings of Inquests because of the personal and sensitive nature of the information involved and the possibility of causing more distress to the next of kin.

To ask the Minister of Justice if he will arrange for details of completed inquests, including the name of the deceased, the verdict and any related recommendations, to be placed on the Coroners Service for Northern Ireland website.

Written answer:

“However where a coroner believes that action should be taken to prevent the recurrence of fatalities similar to the one for which an inquest was held, he may make a report to the person or authority that has power to take action. While there is currently no provision for the publication of this information in Northern Ireland this is something that I intend to review.” because of the personal and sensitive nature of the information involved and the possibility of causing more distress to the next of kin.
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